Public Document Pack

Property / Regeneration Briefing
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
David Wilcock
Monitoring Officer
DATE:

Monday, 26 July 2021

TIME:

3.00 pm

VENUE:

100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record
this meeting.
AGENDA
FACE TO FACE FORMAL COUNCIL MEETINGS FOR MEMBERS
OF THE PUBLIC FROM 5TH JULY
1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)

(Pages 1 - 2)

No items
4

Public Briefing Items
The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members
of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters,
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda.

4a

Brownfield Housing Fund, Greengate Sites (see item 6(a))

(Pages 3 - 12)

4b

Brownfield Housing Fund, Housing Development Sites (see Item 6(b))

(Pages 13 - 24)

5

Exclusion of the Public

6

Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)

6a

Brownfield Housing Fund, Greengate Sites

(Pages 25 - 26)

6b

Brownfield Housing Fund, Housing Development Sites

7

Any other business

Contact Officer:
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor

(Pages 27 - 28)

Tel No:
E-Mail:

0161 793 3013
mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Annex
The return to face to face council meetings from 7th May 2021
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the
Government now requires meetings of the full council, Cabinet, committees, panels
and boards (that are open to the public) to be held in public so members of the public
can attend in person.
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking
place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your safety is our
utmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective
decision making.
The venue for face to face meetings
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment,
Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized
venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure
way.
COVID-secure face to face meetings
Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the
meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus. It is very important that
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following:
1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for
controlled access to the building and meeting space.
2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting.
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle
of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise
your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption,
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the
building.
4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with
pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail
with you when you arrive).
5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting
and on the morning of the meeting:


You can collect or order the home testing kits by:
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home
o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point



If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to
Democratic Services at decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk



If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary
PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.

6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the
risk is higher, particularly if…
 you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if you are at significant risk

Page 1



you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact
as well as health conditions.

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either
of the above applies to you, before you make a decision about attending a face to
face meeting.
Travelling to 100 Embankment
 By foot: A range of walking routes are available.



By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk
from 100 Embankment.
By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is
located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be prebooked on the website below.
Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park

Page 2

Agenda Item 4a
Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE
TO
PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING
ON 12TH JULY 2021 (BRIEFING)
ON 26TH JULY 2021 (FOR DECISION)

TITLE: Brownfield Housing Fund, Greengate sites
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the City Mayor:
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms set out in the body of this report and on the
detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval elsewhere on the
agenda.
1. Approves the Council entering into a grant funding agreement with Greater
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) in relation to the Brownfield Housing Fund
for Greengate Site 3.
2. Approves the Council entering into a grant funding agreement with Greater
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) in relation to the Brownfield Housing Fund
for Greengate Site 4.
3. Provides delegated authority to the Strategic Director Place, City Solicitor and Chief
Finance Officer to negotiate and finalise the detailed financial, commercial and
contractual arrangements in respect of the proposed grant from GMCA to the Council.
4. Authorises the Strategic Director Place to enter into and complete all necessary
agreements or documents to give effect to the above recommendations.
5. Approves the delivery option, as set out in the report, as the most appropriate delivery
mechanism for the remaining Greengate development sites.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Council has received a grant allocation from Greater Manchester Combined Authority
(GMCA), as part of the GM Brownfield Housing Fund (BHF) to support the unlocking of
stalled, brownfield sites across Greengate for housing. The two sites are identified as

Page 3

1

Greengate site 4, King St Car Park (plot 1 on attached plan) and Greengate site 3, Waterloo
Pub (plots 2, 3, and 4 on attached plan) (Appendix 1).
To draw down the grant from GMCA a grant funding agreement is required to be entered into
between the Council and GMCA.
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the grant funding arrangement to deliver
the Brownfield Housing Fund project in Greengate and outline the delivery strategy to ensure
the schemes can be delivered satisfactorily to the BHF timescales. Further approvals will be
sought as required during the delivery process in relation to the appointment of a delivery
partner and/or exercising of Compulsory Purchase powers to realise the completion of the
housing-led development within Greengate.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Greengate Regeneration Strategy (February 2018).

KEY DECISION: YES
DETAILS:
1.0

Background

1.1

In August 2020, GMCA were awarded an initial allocation of £81.1m of Brownfield Land
grant from MHCLG – part of the Government’s five-year £400m Fund to bring forward
more homes by unlocking brownfield land.

1.2

MHCLG withheld 10% of the allocation and sought on a competitive basis, bids from
Mayor Combined Authorities in England. In liaison with GM districts, GMCA submitted
a bid for the full £40m retained grant from MHCLG. The £40m bid to support housing
development schemes with a start on site by March 2025.

1.3

Using this criteria Salford submitted an initial bid to the GMCA, to bring forward housing
development on sites in Pendleton and Greengate.

1.4

MHCLG confirmed earlier this year that the GMCA had been successful in the process
and would receive £16m of the retained Brownfield Housing Fund capital grant. GMCA
confirmed to Districts that they would only consider the named sites included in the
original £40m bid to MHCLG for this additional Brownfield fund allocation.

1.5

As Pendleton Phase 3 had already secured necessary Brownfield grant via the
separate tranche 1 process, this was no longer considered for the £16m funding. The
revised position following a further due diligence process, and approved by GMCA,
was to support acquisition of the two identified sites within Greengate for housing
development.

Page 4

2

2.0

Grant Funding Agreement

2.1

In order to claim back expenditure on eligible activities, a grant funding agreement
(GFA) will be put in place between GMCA and Salford Council. This will show the
grant allocation, along with more detailed guidance about delivery, tailored to local
authorities and the specific activities covered by the Fund.

2.2

A generic GFA has been issued to provide an example of the contracting document
which will be signed with Salford Council. Shared legal services have been instructed
and are currently in the process of reviewing the draft documents for agreement.
GMCA has indicated that the current timeframe for individual agreements to be ready
for exchange will be end July 2021.

2.3

Under the general terms of the agreement the BHF is only to be used for the approved
scope of activities. Eligible expenditure is for Capital spend to support viability on the
Greengate sites, specifically towards land acquisitions, working in partnership with an
appointed development partner to accelerate housing delivery. For costs to be eligible
to this project, the Council will need to ensure that it can achieve the outputs and
outcomes as agreed within the grant agreement and by the dates set out.

2.4

In certain circumstances the GMCA may withhold payment of the grant and the Council
may also be required to repay all or part of the BHF. Generic clawback provisions
include for if there is a failure on the Council’s part to comply with the conditions of the
grant, for example:


the funding is not spent on eligible activity;



delays with delivery of the scheme result in allocated spend not being made; and,



scheme proposals change materially insofar as the original stated outputs would
therefore not be realised.

2.5

The general terms of the grant agreement also include overage provisions whereby if
land is sold that has benefitted from the BHF a proportion of the uplift in value will be
payable. In addition, overage is to be paid on returns over and above an agreed level
set out in the agreement.

3.0

Delivery of Housing

3.1

Greengate sits in the heart of City Centre Salford and is experiencing a period of
intensive development activity and growth. There has been a longstanding vision for
Greengate dating back to 2005, which led to the first planning guidance in 2007 that
sought to fundamentally reconnect the historic cores of Salford and Manchester with a
vision of improved physical links and a network of high-quality public realm extending
from Manchester’s Cathedral quarter. Since that time much progress has been made
and The Greengate Regeneration Strategy (GRS), adopted in May 2018, provides an
updated vision; for the area to become a dynamic residential and commercial place
with an exceptional public realm.

Page 5

3

3.2

3.3

The GRS highlights the opportunities offered by underutilised land such as surface car
parks, older industrial premises and vacant railway arches, together with supporting
existing cultural uses. The main constraints are the physical characteristics of the area
(including the river and railway viaduct) as well as fragmented land ownership. The
strategy outlines priorities to include:

Delivering more new homes, workplaces, cultural opportunities, retailing and
leisure;


High density development to provide a vibrant area; and,



Development of high-quality public realm

Greengate has continued to experience great success with extensive development
ongoing, completed and planned. This development has seen the majority of sites
within the strategic area come forward in line with the objectives of the GRS.
Most recent development includes:


Embankment West, City Suites 2 & residential – Practical completion 2021-22



Embankment 101 – commercial grade A office space, completed June 2020



Anaconda Cut – residential, completed 2018



Phase 1 – Renaker, on site practical completion 2023-24



Fifty5 Queen Street – on site practical completion Q4 2022

3.4

The above are the most recent examples of where the Council has worked very
successfully alongside private sector partners to bring forward comprehensive
regeneration of the Greengate area in line with the objectives of the Regeneration
Strategy. The Council now wants to move forward to completing the Greengate area
and there remains a small number of stalled sites which the Council have identified as
the key barriers to the completion of regeneration of this significant area of Salford.
This includes the former Waterloo Pub and King St car park sites which are both
subject to the Brownfield Housing Grant.

3.5

To date the Council has worked successfully with landowners and developer partners
to realise delivery. Dialogue continues with a number of developers in the area to bring
forward the remaining sites.

3.6

Property Services have engaged with the landowners of the two subject sites, which
fall into three separate ownerships. Whilst there is optimism that terms will be agreed
with the owners it is anticipated greater powers may be required as negotiations
progress, including reference to and use of Compulsory Purchase Powers.

3.7

The Greengate Regeneration Strategy states selective use of CPO powers may be
justified for specific prioritised development and infrastructure activities and to give
certainty to the development process. Given the extensive development success to
date the potential of exercising powers to support completion of the area is increasing.

Page 6

4

A report will be brought to a future Property and Regeneration meeting for an inprinciple CPO resolution, should this be required.
3.8

In order to progress the process of site acquisition, and to be able to deliver the
associated housing within the timescales linked to the funding, the Council will seek to
identify and appoint a developer partner with the credentials and capability to deliver
high quality, housing-led development across Greengate with an initial primary
emphasis on the two stalled sites identified. Indicative appraisals submitted as part of
the grant funding assessment identify a potential 257 housing units could be achieved
across the two sites.

3.9

The successful applicant will enter into a development agreement with Salford City
Council and prepare schemes in accordance with the Greengate Regeneration
Strategy and SCC Planning Policy to secure planning permission for the sites. The
applicant will support the Council as it seeks to acquire the stalled sites within the area.
Salford City Council will then continue to work with the successful applicant, so that the
consented schemes may be completed to the agreed programme. In the event that the
BHF does not cover the full value of the site, the developer will be expected to part
contribute to finance the purchase of the site(s). In line with the Brownfield Housing
Fund, a target date for start on site for the housing developments is September 2024.

3.10 The current timetable for the appointment of a developer partner is set out below:
Stage

Date(s)

Issue of information memorandum and
application form

2nd Aug 2021

Queries/Clarifications:

26th Aug 2021
deadline for submission to the Council 10
working days prior to submission of the
application

Submission deadline for Application

10th Sep 2021

Expected date of evaluation conclusion
and identification of Preferred Applicant

End Oct 2021

Development Agreement commenced

End Dec 2021

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Greengate Regeneration Strategy (February 2018).

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
There are no specific equality impact matters following the proposals contained in this report.

Page 7

5

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium
At the time of writing legal agreements were in an early draft stage and Heads of Terms in
the form of a standard GMCA Grant Agreement Proforma have been agreed.
As set out in paragraphs 2.3-2.5 above, in the event that the project is not progressed
satisfactorily in line with the agreed milestone dates or delivered by the completion date, or
other conditions of the Grant Agreement are not met, the Council could be deemed to be in
breach and be liable to GMCA.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Lauren Armstrong/ Tony Hatton, Legal Services
Grant Funding Agreement:
Legal Services has been provided with two grant funding agreements issued by GMCA’s
legal advisors (Greengate 3 and 4). As indicated above, these are pro-forma grant
agreements which flow down GMCA conditions and any MHCLG requirements in connection
with the Brownfield Housing fund. GMCA’s position is that, other than terms listed in a
separate “gaps list”, the terms are non-negotiable. SCC is also required to register a
restriction on title with Land Registry in favour of GMCA over the two funded sites and
undertake full investigation of title and searches. Colleagues in the property legal team will
be able to assist with these requirements.
Legal has reviewed the proposed terms, and whilst the terms contain some risk to SCC (as
highlighted in paragraphs 2.3-2.5), from a legal perspective the terms could be accepted
(subject to satisfactory agreement of the Schedules which will set out the project specific
conditions and commercial principles). If the funding is not spent within the grant period, it is
not spent on eligible expenditure as defined in the agreements, or the project specific
conditions or outputs as detailed in the grant schedules are not met within specific
timescales, then there is a risk to SCC that some or all of the funding may be withdrawn or
subject to clawback. Therefore it is important that SCC is broadly comfortable with the
commitments it is giving to GMCA under this agreement and the proposed timescales are
achievable. Any relevant commitments should also be contractually “flowed down” to SCC’s
delivery partner under the terms of a delivery agreement, particularly where SCC is reliant on
the delivery partner to these.
Legal shall provide a detailed review to SCC client officers on the terms of the grant. A
subsidy control legal opinion (formerly referred to as ‘State Aid’) is being sought from
external solicitors.
Nature of agreement with development partner:
Instructions provided and discussed with client officers so far indicate that the development
agreement and related property transactions will not be a works contract(s) caught by the
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
A works contract is a contract which has as its object any of the following:
(i) the execution or both the design and execution of works specified in schedule 2 to the
PCR (various types of construction activities referred to

Page 8

6

(ii)the execution or both the design and execution of a work
(iii) the realisation by whatever means of works corresponding to the requirements specified
by the authority exercising a decisive influence on the type or design of the work.
The last point is the one that is most relevant to development agreement type arrangements.
There would need to be an enforceable obligation to build/construct, and the reference to
"decisive influence" and how it is interpreted is important. The more the Council will be
asking for and approving the plans, designs; drilling down the type of the development and
for them to be enforceable obligations, identifying the features of the development and
asking the developer to prepare more detailed proposals , changes to the development
needing to be agreed by the Council etc would all start to point towards more of a works
contract and being caught by the Regulations.
Control(s) by way of planning permission wouldn't trigger the procurement rules, that would
be consistent with a property transaction and planning regulatory regime. Having site of or
consultation on proposals, designs, wouldn't trigger the procurement rules either. A land
disposal bid exercise with some additional elements such as looking at relevant experience
of an applicant for example, wouldn't trigger the procurement rules
Delegation to negotiate and agree the development agreement and lease(s)/transfers will no
doubt follow as part of the process and applications from interested parties are being
considered. Legal Services will continue to work with officers to ensure there is a s uitable
form of development agreement, any ancillary agreements, and will seek to ensure that the
Council is in the best position as a recipient in the grant funding agreements as possible, with
any relevant protections in place.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Natalie Birchall. Tel 793 2316
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the grant funding arrangement with SCC
and GMCA to deliver the Brownfield Housing Fund project in Greengate at site 3 and 4.
Further detailed reports will be required for approval as the project develops.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire.

Tel 686 6244

The details in the report relate to a property transaction and on the advice from legal that this
is not a works contract, therefore there are no procurement implications.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Sarah Heslop
The proposals set out in this report relate to the appointment of a developer partner to deliver
housing-led development on stalled sites within the Greengate area of the City Centre, in line

Page 9

7

with the Greengate Regeneration Strategy 2018. The successful Developer’s approach to
sustainable design and development principles will be tested at the planning application
stage.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Property Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

TEL NO:

Sarah Heslop

Currently working from home and available via email
sarah.heslop@salford.gov.uk and MS Teams

Kurt Partington

Currently working from home and available via email
kurt.partington@salford.gov.uk and MS Teams

Joe Costello

Currently working from home and available via email
joe.costello@salford.gov.uk and MS Teams

Andrew Cartwright

Currently working from home and available via email
andrew.cartwright@salford.gov.uk and MS Teams

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Blackfriars and Trinity

Page 10

8

Def

2

2

10

Posts

14

1

POPLIN DRIVE

2 to 12

1

10

t&
Boro Cons

12a
8

16

y
Met Dist Bd

17
2a

ROPE WALK

2

6a

1

22

Evans Street

24 to 34

2
to 12

DEAN ROAD

14

17

9

10
32

33

TRINITY WAY

29.8m

Ward Bdy

30.8m

95

TR

Y
WA
ITY
N
I

93

4

10
0

31.6m
91

Garage

GR
EE
NG

3 2

AT
E
Car Park

2

PH

AY
W

EET

BOON
D

L STR
CAYG
IL

COLL
IE

R ST

Factory

STRE
ET

LB

REET

Y
IT
IN
TR

STRE
ET

17

ROLL
A

85

Works

Warehouse

50

QUEE
N

STRE
E

T

Car Park

GRAV
EL

LANE

39

24 to

DUKE S

Car Park

RI
A

RS

RO

KING
ST

10

TREET

29.5m

REET

Car Park

Spectrum

AD

8

ON
RT
NO

9

KF

33.1m
11

BL
AC

1
26

9a

29.8m

R
ST

T
EE

3

7

T

Spectrum

NEW
STRE
E

LA

33

RD
EN

3

GA

5

NE

16

12

4 to

Car Park
1

31.7m

Club

2

Spectrum

31

54

Spectrum

Factory
2a

27

6

JOH

N ST
RE E
T

D
VIA

TS
UC

T
EE
TR

29.3m

30.3m
SL
11

try
an
lG
na
Sig

29.2m

9
7

5

4

ST
RE
ET

Quebec
Building

ESS

ST
RE
ET

BU
RY
El Sub Sta

CR
O
SS

PW

Solmar
House

3

DW

HAR
D
STR ING
EET

MP 31.25

10

DW

Brewery Yard

Property
Information Section
Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road
Salford
Page 11 M27 5AS

BL
AC
Shelter
KF
RI
AR
S

Ba
rn
fie
ld

RO

Ho
us
e

AD

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A3:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

D
OR
LF
A
S

H
AC
RO
P
AP

48
50
60
52 to

62

1:1250
28/04/2021
SJ8398NW

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4b
Part 1:

Open to the Public – Item No

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE
TO
PROPERTY AND REGENERATION LEAD MEMBER MEETING
ON 26TH JULY 2021

TITLE: Brownfield Housing Fund, Housing Development sites
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the City Mayor:
1. Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval
elsewhere on the agenda.
2. Approves the Council entering into a grant funding agreement with Greater Manchester
Combined Authority (GMCA) for the receipt of a maximum sum of £5,312,000 in relation
to the Brownfield Housing Fund for five development sites across three wards: Ordsall,
Pendlebury and Clifton and Weaste and Seedley.
3. Provides delegated authority to the Strategic Director Place, City Solicitor and Chief
Finance Officer to negotiate and finalise the detailed financial, commercial and
contractual arrangements in respect of the proposed grant from GMCA to the Council.
4. Authorises the Strategic Director Place to enter into and complete all necessary
agreements or documents to give effect to the above recommendations.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Council has received a total grant allocation of £5,312,000 from Greater Manchester
Combined Authority (GMCA), as part of the GM Brownfield Housing Fund (BHF) to support the
unlocking of stalled, brownfield sites across five sites (as named below) for housing. The five
sites are identified as:






Ryall Avenue - Appendix 1
Brassington Avenue - Appendix 2
Clifton Green - Appendix 3
St Lukes - Appendix 4
Longshaw Drive – Appendix 5

Page 13

1

To draw down the grant from GMCA a grant funding agreement is required to be entered into
between the Council and GMCA.
The purpose of this report is to seek approval to enter into the Brownfield Housing Fund to
deliver housing in the above mentioned five sites and outline the delivery strategy to ensure
the schemes can be delivered satisfactorily to the BHF timescales.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
None.

KEY DECISION: YES
DETAILS:
1.0

Background

1.1

In August 2020, GMCA were awarded an initial allocation of £81.1m of Brownfield
Land grant from MHCLG – part of the Government’s five-year £400m Fund to bring
forward more homes by unlocking brownfield land.

1.2

In liaison with GM districts, GMCA sought sites from districts as part of the Tranche
2 exercise to allocate remaining Brownfield Land grant available to GMCA.

1.3

GMCA undertook an assessment and prioritisation of all sites submitted by GM
districts. The successful sites were reported and agreed by GMCA in March 2021.
Salford has been successful under Tranche 2 in being awarded Brownfield Land
grant to unlock and support the delivery of five sites in Salford

1.4

The amount of funding approved by the GMCA for the Salford schemes is as follows:



Ryall Avenue, Brassington Avenue & Clifton Green – grant of £1,663,000 to support
the site remediation and development of the social rented housing development.



St Lukes – grant of £710,000 to support the site remediation and development of
this former school site for private sale, private rent and affordable/social rent housing
development.



Longshaw Drive – grant of £2,939,000 to support the site remediation and
development of this former school site for private sale, private rent and
affordable/social rent housing development.

Page 14

2

2.0

Grant Funding Agreement

2.1

In order to claim back expenditure on eligible activities, a grant funding agreement
(GFA) will be put in place between GMCA and Salford City Council. This will show
the grant allocation, along with more detailed guidance about delivery, tailored to
local authorities and the specific activities covered by the Fund.

2.2

A generic GFA has been issued to provide an example of the contracting document
which will be signed with Salford Council. Shared legal services have been
instructed and are currently in the process of reviewing the draft documents for
agreement. GMCA has indicated that the current timeframe for individual
agreements to be ready for exchange will be end July 2021.

2.3

Under the general terms of the agreement the BHF is only to be used for the
approved scope of activities. Eligible expenditure is for Capital spend to support
viability on the five sites, specifically towards site clearance, site remediation and
contribution towards build costs, working in partnership with an appointed
development partner/s to accelerate housing delivery.

3.0

Delivery of Housing

3.1

Following Council approval in December 2020, the City is increasing its direct
delivery of affordable housing.

3.2

There is a significant shortage of affordable housing in the City with 5857
households (April 2020) registered on the city’s housing register. Each vacant
affordable property attracts an average of 63 bids. Research completed as part of
the GM SHMA 2020 indicated that there was a shortfall of 809 affordable homes per
annum. There are also pressures in relation to accessible / adaptable homes with
1307 households (22%) in need of adapted or accessible housing. These pressures
are at their most acute for wheelchair accessible properties with only 2 properties
available to re-let in 18/19.

3.3

The delivery of 349 homes across a range house types on these five sites, which
are the council’s first large scale development proposals for years, contribute to our
ambition of accelerating development of all tenures and to build on our work around
increasing the supply of affordable housing. These schemes will set an exemplar
standard and demonstrate to other house builders / developing Registered
Providers what can be achieved and the quality of build that the City has ambitions
to achieve.

Page 15

3

3.4

Council land supply is limited, and Affordable housing delivery requires subsidy; the
Brownfield Grant funding presents an opportunity to secure significant funding to aid
the delivery of affordable homes and bring forward schemes.

3.5

The five sites are located throughout Salford in areas which have a significant need
for additional housing. There has been a longstanding vision for the City to develop
additional affordable homes to meet the required need of Salford residents; Housing
Strategy “Our Home, our City 2020 to 2025” was adopted to increase the availability
of affordable homes in the city with a key priority being the delivery of additional
affordable homes. Furthermore, the City’s new Local Plan: development
management policies and designations seeks to ensure a good range of house
types and to secure improved space standards including accessible and adaptable
homes (encouraging wheelchair accessible homes) with outdoor and amenity space
along with seeking to exceed building regulations for energy efficiency.

3.6

The developments will increase the provision across the City and provide much
needed sustainable, highly efficient low energy homes with a good range of house
types, including accessible and adaptable homes.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Housing Strategy “Our Home, our City 2020 to 2025”
City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004-16 (adopted June 2006)
Planning Obligations SPD (2019)

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
There are no specific equality impact matters following the proposals contained in this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium
In the event that the project is not progressed satisfactorily in line with the agreed milestone
dates or delivered by the completion date, or other conditions of the Grant Agreement are not
met, the Council could be deemed to be in breach and be liable to GMCA.
At the time of writing legal agreements were in an early draft stage and Heads of Terms in
the form of a standard GMCA Grant Agreement Proforma have been agreed. The following
key commercial risk have been identified at this stage:


Timescales – due to the time restraints of the funding window key agreement milestones
are pressured. The principal risk is the sites are not delivered on time. We will seek to
ensure that any potential risks are mitigated through regular monitoring meetings. The
direct delivery of housing changes the risk profile as the City will take on the risk of

Page 16

4

potential cost overruns and project delays. These will be monitored and mitigated through
a project group of professionals including a Project Manager.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Lauren Armstrong, Solicitor, Legal Services
Grant Funding Agreement:
Legal Services has been provided with two grant funding agreements issued by GMCA’s legal
advisors. As indicated above, these are pro-forma grant agreements which flow down GMCA
conditions and any MHCLG requirements in connection with the Brownfield Housing fund.
GMCA’s position is that, other than terms listed in a separate “gaps list”, the terms are nonnegotiable. SCC is also required to register a restriction on title with Land Registry in favour of
GMCA over the two funded sites and undertake full investigation of title and searches.
Colleagues in the property legal team will be able to assist with these requirements.
Legal has reviewed the proposed terms, and whilst the terms contain some risk to SCC (as
highlighted in paragraphs 2.3-2.5), from a legal perspective the terms could be accepted
(subject to satisfactory agreement of the Schedules which will set out the project specific
conditions and commercial principles). If the funding is not spent within the grant period, it is
not spent on eligible expenditure as defined in the agreements, or the project specific
conditions or outputs as detailed in the grant schedules are not met within specific timescales,
then there is a risk to SCC that some or all of the funding may be withdrawn or subject to
clawback. Therefore it is important that SCC is broadly comfortable with the commitments it is
giving to GMCA under this agreement and the proposed timescales are achievable. Any
relevant commitments should also be contractually “flowed down” to SCC’s delivery partner
under the terms of a delivery agreement, particularly where SCC is reliant on the delivery
partner to these.
Legal shall provide a detailed review to SCC client officers on the terms of the grant. A subsidy
control legal opinion (formerly referred to as ‘State Aid’) is being sought from external solicitors.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Natalie Birchall. Tel 793 2316
The Council has received a total grant allocation of £5,312,000 from GMCA, as part of the GM
Brownfield Housing Fund (BHF) to support the unlocking of stalled, brownfield sites across five
sites detailed in this report.
The purpose of this report is to seek approval to enter into the Brownfield Housing Fund to
deliver housing in the above mentioned five sites and enter into a grant funding agreement
with GMCA to a maximum sum of £5,312,000.
Further approvals will be required as the schemes progress and spend will be closely
monitored to ensure capital expenditure meets the general terms of the agreement and the
BHF is only used for the approved scope of activities.

Page 17

5

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire.

Tel 686 6244

The report is seeking to enter into a grant funding agreement with Greater
Manchester Combined Authority therefore there are no procurement implications.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Gillian Holt
The properties on these sites are being delivered to a high standard fabric first approach to
provide low carbon, low energy homes and the approach to sustainable design and
development principles have/will be tested at the planning application stage.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
None.

CONTACT OFFICER:

TEL NO:

Gill Holt

Currently working from home and available via email
gillian.holt@salford.gov.uk and MS Teams

Andrew Leigh

Currently working from home and available via email
andrew.leigh@salford.gov.uk and MS Teams

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Orsdall, Pendlebury & Clifton, Little Hulton &
Weaste & Seedley.

Page 18

6

Appendix 1 – Ryall Avenue Location Map

Page 19

7

Appendix 2 – Brassington Avenue Location Map

Page 20

8

Appendix 3 – Clifton Green Location Map

Page 21

9

Appendix 4 – Longshaw Drive Location Map (edged red only)

Page 22

10

Appendix 5 – St Lukes Location Map

Page 23

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6a
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:
Brownfield Housing Fund - Greengate
Sites

Committee: Property and Regeneration
Briefing - 26th July 2021

Category of exemption applied: 3

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.
FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken
certain decisions?

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money
for council taxpayers?

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decisionmaking or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact
occurred?

No

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the
public any useful information?

Page 25

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests,
without giving the public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the
public useful information?

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals
at risk?

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would
benefit more from information being withheld?

No

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report provides sensitive commercial information on land acquisitions, release of
which could prove prejudicial to both parties. The accompanying Part 1 version of the
report provides relevant information for the public to understand the nature and rationale
of the decision being taken by the City Council.

Name and Title:

Sarah Heslop - Group Leader Development Team

Date:

16 July 2021

Page 26

Agenda Item 6b
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:
Brownfield Housing Fund –
Housing Development

Committee: Property and Regeneration
Briefing - 26th July 2021

Category of exemption applied: 3

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.
FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken
certain decisions?

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money
for council taxpayers?

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decisionmaking or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact
occurred?

No

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the
public any useful information?

Page 27

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests,
without giving the public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the
public useful information?

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals
at risk?

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would
benefit more from information being withheld?

No

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report provides sensitive commercial information on land acquisitions, release of
which could prove prejudicial to both parties. The accompanying Part 1 version of the
report provides relevant information for the public to understand the nature and rationale
of the decision being taken by the City Council.

Name and Title:

Gillian Holt - Development Officer, Housing Strategy Team

Date:

16 July 2021

Page 28

